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BE | T REMEMBERED t hat on Thur sday,
Cctober 3, 2024, at 5.00 p.m Pacific tine, before
t he Washi ngton Energy Facility Site Eval uation
Counci |l ; Kathl een Drew, Chair; and Dan Gerard,
Adm ni strative Law Judge, the foll ow ng proceedi ngs

were had, via videoconference, to wt:

LLLLL >>>>>>

CHAIR DREW Ckay. (Good eveni ng,
everyone. This is Kathleen Drew, chair of the Energy
Facility Site Evaluation Council, calling this
neeting to order.

This neeting is -- first of all, this neeting is
for the Wautoma Sol ar energy project. This is a
public hearing on the adjudicative hearing for this
project. The purpose of this adjudicative proceedi ng
Is to determne if the Council should recomend to
t he governor preenption of the local jurisdiction's
| and-use provisions, and if so, what conditions
shoul d be included in the draft site certification
agreenent which considers state or | ocal governnental
or community interests affected by the project. For
t hose of you who are offering comrents, | ask that

you stay within that topic.
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To begin, Ms. Gantham wll you call the roll.

M5. GRANTHAM Certainly, Chair
Dr ew.

The Departnent of Conmerce.

M5. OSBORNE: Elizabeth Gsborne,
present .

M5. GRANTHAM  Depart nent of
Ecol ogy.

MR LEVITT: Eli Levitt, present.

M5. GRANTHAM  Departnent of Fish
and Wldlife.

MR, LIVINGSTON. M ke Livingston,
present.

M5. GRANTHAM  Depart nent of
Nat ural Resour ces.

MR. YOUNG Lenny Young, present.

M5. GRANTHAM Uilities and
Transportati on Conm ssi on.

MS. BREWSTER St acey Brewster,
present .

M5. GRANTHAM  For | ocal governnment
and optional state agencies: For Benton County, do
we have Dave Sharp?

MR. SHARP: Dave Sharp, present.

M5. GRANTHAM  And Washington State

253.627.6401 BAL.T.GAT.ONSERV.CES schedule@balitigation.com
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Departnent of Transportation, Paul Gonseth.
Moving on. Administrative |aw judge: Dan
Ger ar d.
JUDGE CGERARD: Present.
M5. GRANTHAM  And do we have
anyone present for the counsel for the environnent?
Chair, there is a quorum
CHAIR DREW Thank you.
At this point, I'll turn it over to Judge Cerard.
JUDGE CGERARD: (Good eveni ng,
everyone. And thank you for your attendance tonight.
As Chair Drew had stated just a nonent ago, the
topics are limted to what she articulated just a
nmoment ago.
| woul d ask that everyone do speak |oudly and
clearly. W are recording these proceedings. And we
have asked that everyone limt their coments to
t hree m nut es.
So without further ado, if we are ready, |I'll go
ahead and call the first participant.
Davi d Robert, are you present?
DAVI D ROBERT: Yes, | am
JUDGE GERARD: All right. If you'd
like to make a comment, sir, please go ahead and

begi n.

253.627.6401 BALITIGATION . schedule@balitigation.com
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DAVI D ROBERT: Coul d you just tell
the -- the -- what we're supposed to coment? |
m ssed that real quick. [|'msorry.
JUDGE GERARD: Sure. Chair Drew --
DAVID ROBERT: Limt it to --
JUDGE GERARD: I'Il let her -- if

you don't mnd, Chair Drew, would you repeat just

the -- the scope of the -- the proceedings --

DAVI D ROBERT:  Yes.

JUDGE GERARD: -- just so all the
rest of everyone else is aware? |f not, | can
certainly take it up and -- and repeat it.

CHAIR DREW | have it. It's right
here in front of ne.

So this is the public hearing on the adjudicative
hearing, and the Council has limted the adjudicative
proceeding to the subject of |and use and whet her or
not the Council should reconmmend to the governor
preenption of the |ocal jurisdiction's |and-use
provision, and if so, what conditions should be
included in the draft site certification agreenent,
whi ch consi der state or | ocal governnental or
community interests affected by the project.

So we're asking the public to comment, if they're

commenting on this adjudicative proceeding, to keep

253.627.6401 BALITIGATION . schedule@balitigation.com
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their comments limted to that topic. Ckay?

DAVI D ROBERT: Ckay.

JUDCGE CGERARD: Very good.

DAVI D ROBERT: Yeah, I'm-- |'m
Dave Robert, one of the brothers who own the ranch
where the site will be put at.

One of the things | wanted to say was the site, |

think, is an excellent situation because we're 40

mles west of the Tri-Cities and 12 mles north of

Sunnyside. The land that will be under the solar,
sone -- just about 700 acres is irrigated, but we
have a declining well, so the water in sone sense is

really not considered prinme farm and anynore, and the
rest of the land that's going to be on is pretty nuch
sagebrush and CRP | and.

So | just think it's just one of the best
| ocati ons we could have for solar. It's very
Isolated. W' re surrounded with no -- you know, no
peopl e able to even |l ook in, 'cause we got the
Ratt| esnake Ri dge on one side, the Hanford
reservation on the other, and another small ridge.
And just to the west of us, we have a few nei ghbors.
So I'mjust suggesting that this would be a great
site, and it'd be -- it'd be a wwn-win for everybody.

Thank you very nuch.

253.627.6401 BALITIGATION . schedule@balitigation.com
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JUDGE GERARD: Thank you,
M. Robert.

Wth that, we'll go ahead and nove on to the next
speaker who has signed up, and that woul d be Randy
Robert .

Randy Robert, are you present?

RANDY ROBERT: | am

JUDCGE CGERARD: Very good.

And if you'd like to nake a comment, please go
ahead and begi n.

RANDY ROBERT: Yes. Kind of the
sanme way ny brother was saying, the Wautoma Sol ar
energy project is a very good option for renewabl e
energy. The location is very renote but has easy
access to a BPA substation. The land that would be
under solar panels is not prinme farm and, along with
the water table dropping in the aquifer makes for
farm ng very chal |l engi ng.

This project would save water and hel p repl eni sh
the aquifer. The Robert Ranch would still raise
cattle and farmin the future. So, to ne, this is a
i deal spot, and -- and it would be good for our
famly going into the future. Thank you.

JUDCGE CGERARD: Thank you, sir.

Al right. Myving on the next -- to the next

253.627.6401 BALITIGATION . schedule@balitigation.com
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participant: Allison Keeler. There is a note that
you may not be present, but if you are, go ahead and
speak up, please.

Al right. W'Il cone back to -- to Ms. Keeler
at the end to see if she did join at that point. So
let's nove along to the next speaker.

M chael Robert, are you present, sir?

MCHAEL ROBERT: | am This is --
JUDCGE CGERARD: (Speaki ng

si mul t aneousl y.)
M CHAEL ROBERT: -- M chael Robert,

al so one of the Robert brothers. And | also want to

comment that the -- the location for this sol ar panel
project is -- is at -- is very, very isol ated.
There -- it's -- as indicated, it's at closest 12 to

15 mles fromany population area, and it is in a
val l ey where -- where basically it is, you know, not
easily seen.

There's two maj or highways that kind of go --
that kind of go by the ranch and where the sol ar
project is, but you would only see the -- see the
project for about three mles on H ghway 341, and you
would only see it for about one mle on H ghway 24.
Soit's a very -- it's a very good |location for --

for a solar panel project and at least fromthe

253.627.6401 BALITIGATION . schedule@balitigation.com
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public viewpoint.

And also to reiterate, the well has dropped
several hundred feet 'cause of the aquifer being
depleted. And if -- without being able to irrigate
this land, the land really is very marginal, you
know, wheat country. The history of the ranch
started as a sheep ranch, which didn't -- and then
eventually a well was drilled to do farmng. But
with the well dropping, it is not -- not feasible to
be farming in the way we used to do our farm ng.
Thank you.

JUDCGE CGERARD: Thank you, sir.

Let's nove on, then, next, to the next
partici pant.

Mary Larsen, are you present?

Mary Larsen, if you're present, would you go
ahead and turn yourself off "nute" and speak up. |If
not, we'll go ahead and cone back to you at the end.

Al right. It doesn't appear so at this point,
so we'll go ahead and nove on to the next speaker.
Excuse rme.

Cel ene Robert, are you present? Celene Robert,
I f you' re present, go ahead and turn yourself off
"mute," and speak up, please.

Ckay. We'll go ahead and just for the sake of

253.627.6401 BALITIGATION . schedule@balitigation.com



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council
Verbatim Record of Proceedings, Hearing to Receive Public Comments - October 03, 2024

Page 12

time, we'll nove on to the |ast signed-up
participant, and we'll circle back to the other ones.

Robi n Robert, are you present, sir?

ROBI N ROBERT: Yes, | am

JUDGE GERARD:  ( Speaki ng
si mul t aneousl y.)

ROBI N ROBERT: |'m one of the other
brothers. H . | think ny brothers pretty -- pretty
much covered it all.

|'"'m 71 years old, and -- and it'd be nice if the
solar went in. W'd have steady incone for the next
25 years. And they pretty much covered the whole
t hi ng about the water situation and the isolation of
our ranch conpared to other towns.

That's pretty nuch it. Thank you.

JUDGE CGERARD: Thank you, sir.

Al right. So let's go ahead and circle back to
the three other nanes |I called earlier. Then we can
see if there's any other ones that have signed up
that were not on the list | was provided.

Al l'i son Keel er, have you nanaged to join us?

MR, SHARP: Judge Gerard and
Kat hl een Drew, this is Dave Sharp.

JUDCGE CGERARD: Yes, sir.

MR, SHARP: |"mnot sure if she can

253.627.6401 BALITIGATION . schedule@balitigation.com
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hear me, but, Kathleen Drew, when people are dialing
in, you normally give instructions on howto nute and
unnute thenselves. |'mwondering if perhaps the
people are dialing in and can't get unnuted.

CHAIR DREW Ms. Grantham do you
see anyone who is trying to unnute?

M5. GRANTHAM | do not see any
phone calls who have called in, but in case anybody
has j oi ned through their Teans app naybe on their
phone and is struggling to unnute, | can instruct you
that you can attenpt to use star 6 or pound 6.

Though | have been checking the participants for
whenever ALJ Cerard is calling the nanes, and | do
not see the nanes that he is calling at the nonent.

JUDCGE CGERARD: Yeah.

CHAI R DREW Thank you.

JUDGE GERARD: | was -- | was
actually checking that as well, and I don't see these
participants, but | was hoping or | was concerned
that they maybe called in under soneone el se's nane,
but it doesn't appear that's the case.

Thank you, M. Sharp, for that.

So let's go ahead and call the next nanme or the
party. Mary Larsen, have you joi ned?

Again, it doesn't appear so.

253.627.6401 BALITIGATION . schedule@balitigation.com
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Let's nove on to the final one. Celene Robert,
are you on any of the calls, and if so, go ahead and
turn yourself off "nmute," and go ahead and nmake your
comrent s.

kay. Ms. Grantham do we have any ot her
participants that are not on the list that you had
provided to ne?

M5. GRANTHAM Not that | am aware
of. | have been checking the EFSEC i n-boxes that
peopl e have been e-mailing into to sign up, and we
haven't received any new ones as of yet.

JUDCGE CGERARD: Ckay. So during
this interimperiod, |'"'mgoing to pass the reins back
to Chair Drew, and she will informus all how -- how
we'd |like to proceed going forward now that all the
speakers who are present have spoken.

CHAIR DREW | think at this point,
ask anyone else who is on the line if they wwsh to
speak, and if not, we'll conclude the hearing.

JUDGE GERARD: Ckay. So with that,
I f there are people who would like to speak, if you
have the -- the program up, go ahead and rai se your
hand just so we can control the flow. If you don't
have that functionality, go ahead and just speak up,

and we'll -- we'll take you in order.
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| s anybody el se present who has not spoken that
would like to add to the -- the public conment
portion of this adjudication?

Chair Drew, |I'm not seeing anybody. How | ong
woul d you like to wait before you adjourn?

CHAIR DREW | think we have heard
all the testinony that we're going to hear tonight,
so | think it's tinme to adjourn.

Thank you very nmuch for all your participation.
Thi s neeting' s adj ourned.
(Meeti ng adj ourned at
5:13 p.m)
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STATE OF WASHI NGTON ) I, John MS. Botel ho, CCR RPR

) ss a certified court reporter

) in the State of Washi ngton, do
hereby certify:

County of Pierce

That the foregoi ng HEARI NG TO RECEI VE PUBLI C COMVENTS
DURI NG ADJUDI CATI VE PROCEEDI NGS of the Washi ngton State
Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was conducted
renotely in ny presence and adj ourned on Cctober 3, 2024,
and thereafter was transcri bed under ny direction; that the
transcript is a full, true and conplete transcript of the
said hearing, transcribed to the best of ny ability;

That | amnot a rel ative, enployee, attorney or counsel
of any party to this matter or relative or enployee of any
such attorney or counsel and that I amnot financially

interested in the said matter or the outcone thereof;

IN WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny hand
this 17th day of October, 2024.

/s/John M S. Botel ho, CCR RPR
Certified Court Reporter No. 2976
(Certification expires 5/26/2025.)
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                BEFORE THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

            ENERGY FACILITY SITE EVALUATION COUNCIL

______________________________________________________________

In the Matter of the Application      )

of:                                   )

                                      )

                                      )

Innergex Renewable Development        ) Docket No. EF-220355

USA, LLC, for Wautoma Solar           )

Project,                              )

                                      )

                                      )

                     Applicant.       )

                                      )

______________________________________________________________

              HEARING TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENTS

                DURING ADJUDICATIVE PROCEEDINGS

                VERBATIM RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

                        October 3, 2024

                Conducted via Microsoft Teams

    Reporter:  John M.S. Botelho, CCR, RPR
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 1                        APPEARANCES

 2   (All parties appearing remotely.)

 3        Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council Members:

 4                     Kathleen Drew, Chair

 5                     Elizabeth Osborne

                       Department of Commerce

 6

                       Eli Levitt

 7                     Department of Ecology

 8                     Mike Livingston

                       Department of Fish and Wildlife

 9

                       Lenny Young

10                     Department of Natural Resources

11                     Stacey Brewster

                       Utilities & Transportation Commission

12

13        Local Government and Optional State Agencies:

14            Wautoma Solar:

15                 Dave Sharp, Benton County

16

          Administrative Law Judge:

17

                       Dan Gerard

18

19        Council Staff:

20            Adrienne Barker        Lance Caputo

21            Alex Shiley            Andrea Grantham

22

23

24

25
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 1                     BE IT REMEMBERED that on Thursday,

 2   October 3, 2024, at 5:00 p.m. Pacific time, before

 3   the Washington Energy Facility Site Evaluation

 4   Council; Kathleen Drew, Chair; and Dan Gerard,

 5   Administrative Law Judge, the following proceedings

 6   were had, via videoconference, to wit:

 7

 8                       <<<<<< >>>>>>

 9

10                     CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Good evening,

11   everyone.  This is Kathleen Drew, chair of the Energy

12   Facility Site Evaluation Council, calling this

13   meeting to order.

14       This meeting is -- first of all, this meeting is

15   for the Wautoma Solar energy project.  This is a

16   public hearing on the adjudicative hearing for this

17   project.  The purpose of this adjudicative proceeding

18   is to determine if the Council should recommend to

19   the governor preemption of the local jurisdiction's

20   land-use provisions, and if so, what conditions

21   should be included in the draft site certification

22   agreement which considers state or local governmental

23   or community interests affected by the project.  For

24   those of you who are offering comments, I ask that

25   you stay within that topic.
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 1       To begin, Ms. Grantham, will you call the roll.

 2                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair

 3   Drew.

 4       The Department of Commerce.

 5                     MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne,

 6   present.

 7                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of

 8   Ecology.

 9                     MR. LEVITT:  Eli Levitt, present.

10                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish

11   and Wildlife.

12                     MR. LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston,

13   present.

14                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of

15   Natural Resources.

16                     MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young, present.

17                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities and

18   Transportation Commission.

19                     MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster,

20   present.

21                     MS. GRANTHAM:  For local government

22   and optional state agencies:  For Benton County, do

23   we have Dave Sharp?

24                     MR. SHARP:  Dave Sharp, present.

25                     MS. GRANTHAM:  And Washington State
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 1   Department of Transportation, Paul Gonseth.

 2       Moving on.  Administrative law judge:  Dan

 3   Gerard.

 4                     JUDGE GERARD:  Present.

 5                     MS. GRANTHAM:  And do we have

 6   anyone present for the counsel for the environment?

 7       Chair, there is a quorum.

 8                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 9       At this point, I'll turn it over to Judge Gerard.

10                     JUDGE GERARD:  Good evening,

11   everyone.  And thank you for your attendance tonight.

12   As Chair Drew had stated just a moment ago, the

13   topics are limited to what she articulated just a

14   moment ago.

15       I would ask that everyone do speak loudly and

16   clearly.  We are recording these proceedings.  And we

17   have asked that everyone limit their comments to

18   three minutes.

19       So without further ado, if we are ready, I'll go

20   ahead and call the first participant.

21       David Robert, are you present?

22                     DAVID ROBERT:  Yes, I am.

23                     JUDGE GERARD:  All right.  If you'd

24   like to make a comment, sir, please go ahead and

25   begin.
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 1                     DAVID ROBERT:  Could you just tell

 2   the -- the -- what we're supposed to comment?  I

 3   missed that real quick.  I'm sorry.

 4                     JUDGE GERARD:  Sure.  Chair Drew --

 5                     DAVID ROBERT:  Limit it to --

 6                     JUDGE GERARD:  I'll let her -- if

 7   you don't mind, Chair Drew, would you repeat just

 8   the -- the scope of the -- the proceedings --

 9                     DAVID ROBERT:  Yes.

10                     JUDGE GERARD:  -- just so all the

11   rest of everyone else is aware?  If not, I can

12   certainly take it up and -- and repeat it.

13                     CHAIR DREW:  I have it.  It's right

14   here in front of me.

15       So this is the public hearing on the adjudicative

16   hearing, and the Council has limited the adjudicative

17   proceeding to the subject of land use and whether or

18   not the Council should recommend to the governor

19   preemption of the local jurisdiction's land-use

20   provision, and if so, what conditions should be

21   included in the draft site certification agreement,

22   which consider state or local governmental or

23   community interests affected by the project.

24       So we're asking the public to comment, if they're

25   commenting on this adjudicative proceeding, to keep
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 1   their comments limited to that topic.  Okay?

 2                     DAVID ROBERT:  Okay.

 3                     JUDGE GERARD:  Very good.

 4                     DAVID ROBERT:  Yeah, I'm -- I'm

 5   Dave Robert, one of the brothers who own the ranch

 6   where the site will be put at.

 7       One of the things I wanted to say was the site, I

 8   think, is an excellent situation because we're 40

 9   miles west of the Tri-Cities and 12 miles north of

10   Sunnyside.  The land that will be under the solar,

11   some -- just about 700 acres is irrigated, but we

12   have a declining well, so the water in some sense is

13   really not considered prime farmland anymore, and the

14   rest of the land that's going to be on is pretty much

15   sagebrush and CRP land.

16       So I just think it's just one of the best

17   locations we could have for solar.  It's very

18   isolated.  We're surrounded with no -- you know, no

19   people able to even look in, 'cause we got the

20   Rattlesnake Ridge on one side, the Hanford

21   reservation on the other, and another small ridge.

22   And just to the west of us, we have a few neighbors.

23   So I'm just suggesting that this would be a great

24   site, and it'd be -- it'd be a win-win for everybody.

25   Thank you very much.
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 1                     JUDGE GERARD:  Thank you,

 2   Mr. Robert.

 3       With that, we'll go ahead and move on to the next

 4   speaker who has signed up, and that would be Randy

 5   Robert.

 6       Randy Robert, are you present?

 7                     RANDY ROBERT:  I am.

 8                     JUDGE GERARD:  Very good.

 9       And if you'd like to make a comment, please go

10   ahead and begin.

11                     RANDY ROBERT:  Yes.  Kind of the

12   same way my brother was saying, the Wautoma Solar

13   energy project is a very good option for renewable

14   energy.  The location is very remote but has easy

15   access to a BPA substation.  The land that would be

16   under solar panels is not prime farmland, along with

17   the water table dropping in the aquifer makes for

18   farming very challenging.

19       This project would save water and help replenish

20   the aquifer.  The Robert Ranch would still raise

21   cattle and farm in the future.  So, to me, this is a

22   ideal spot, and -- and it would be good for our

23   family going into the future.  Thank you.

24                     JUDGE GERARD:  Thank you, sir.

25       All right.  Moving on the next -- to the next
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 1   participant:  Allison Keeler.  There is a note that

 2   you may not be present, but if you are, go ahead and

 3   speak up, please.

 4       All right.  We'll come back to -- to Ms. Keeler

 5   at the end to see if she did join at that point.  So

 6   let's move along to the next speaker.

 7       Michael Robert, are you present, sir?

 8                     MICHAEL ROBERT:  I am.  This is --

 9                     JUDGE GERARD:  (Speaking

10   simultaneously.)

11                     MICHAEL ROBERT:  -- Michael Robert,

12   also one of the Robert brothers.  And I also want to

13   comment that the -- the location for this solar panel

14   project is -- is at -- is very, very isolated.

15   There -- it's -- as indicated, it's at closest 12 to

16   15 miles from any population area, and it is in a

17   valley where -- where basically it is, you know, not

18   easily seen.

19       There's two major highways that kind of go --

20   that kind of go by the ranch and where the solar

21   project is, but you would only see the -- see the

22   project for about three miles on Highway 341, and you

23   would only see it for about one mile on Highway 24.

24   So it's a very -- it's a very good location for --

25   for a solar panel project and at least from the
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 1   public viewpoint.

 2       And also to reiterate, the well has dropped

 3   several hundred feet 'cause of the aquifer being

 4   depleted.  And if -- without being able to irrigate

 5   this land, the land really is very marginal, you

 6   know, wheat country.  The history of the ranch

 7   started as a sheep ranch, which didn't -- and then

 8   eventually a well was drilled to do farming.  But

 9   with the well dropping, it is not -- not feasible to

10   be farming in the way we used to do our farming.

11   Thank you.

12                     JUDGE GERARD:  Thank you, sir.

13       Let's move on, then, next, to the next

14   participant.

15       Mary Larsen, are you present?

16       Mary Larsen, if you're present, would you go

17   ahead and turn yourself off "mute" and speak up.  If

18   not, we'll go ahead and come back to you at the end.

19       All right.  It doesn't appear so at this point,

20   so we'll go ahead and move on to the next speaker.

21   Excuse me.

22       Celene Robert, are you present?  Celene Robert,

23   if you're present, go ahead and turn yourself off

24   "mute," and speak up, please.

25       Okay.  We'll go ahead and just for the sake of
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 1   time, we'll move on to the last signed-up

 2   participant, and we'll circle back to the other ones.

 3       Robin Robert, are you present, sir?

 4                     ROBIN ROBERT:  Yes, I am.

 5                     JUDGE GERARD:  (Speaking

 6   simultaneously.)

 7                     ROBIN ROBERT:  I'm one of the other

 8   brothers.  Hi.  I think my brothers pretty -- pretty

 9   much covered it all.

10       I'm 71 years old, and -- and it'd be nice if the

11   solar went in.  We'd have steady income for the next

12   25 years.  And they pretty much covered the whole

13   thing about the water situation and the isolation of

14   our ranch compared to other towns.

15       That's pretty much it.  Thank you.

16                     JUDGE GERARD:  Thank you, sir.

17       All right.  So let's go ahead and circle back to

18   the three other names I called earlier.  Then we can

19   see if there's any other ones that have signed up

20   that were not on the list I was provided.

21       Allison Keeler, have you managed to join us?

22                     MR. SHARP:  Judge Gerard and

23   Kathleen Drew, this is Dave Sharp.

24                     JUDGE GERARD:  Yes, sir.

25                     MR. SHARP:  I'm not sure if she can
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 1   hear me, but, Kathleen Drew, when people are dialing

 2   in, you normally give instructions on how to mute and

 3   unmute themselves.  I'm wondering if perhaps the

 4   people are dialing in and can't get unmuted.

 5                     CHAIR DREW:  Ms. Grantham, do you

 6   see anyone who is trying to unmute?

 7                     MS. GRANTHAM:  I do not see any

 8   phone calls who have called in, but in case anybody

 9   has joined through their Teams app maybe on their

10   phone and is struggling to unmute, I can instruct you

11   that you can attempt to use star 6 or pound 6.

12       Though I have been checking the participants for

13   whenever ALJ Gerard is calling the names, and I do

14   not see the names that he is calling at the moment.

15                     JUDGE GERARD:  Yeah.

16                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

17                     JUDGE GERARD:  I was -- I was

18   actually checking that as well, and I don't see these

19   participants, but I was hoping or I was concerned

20   that they maybe called in under someone else's name,

21   but it doesn't appear that's the case.

22       Thank you, Mr. Sharp, for that.

23       So let's go ahead and call the next name or the

24   party.  Mary Larsen, have you joined?

25       Again, it doesn't appear so.
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 1       Let's move on to the final one.  Celene Robert,

 2   are you on any of the calls, and if so, go ahead and

 3   turn yourself off "mute," and go ahead and make your

 4   comments.

 5       Okay.  Ms. Grantham, do we have any other

 6   participants that are not on the list that you had

 7   provided to me?

 8                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Not that I am aware

 9   of.  I have been checking the EFSEC in-boxes that

10   people have been e-mailing into to sign up, and we

11   haven't received any new ones as of yet.

12                     JUDGE GERARD:  Okay.  So during

13   this interim period, I'm going to pass the reins back

14   to Chair Drew, and she will inform us all how -- how

15   we'd like to proceed going forward now that all the

16   speakers who are present have spoken.

17                     CHAIR DREW:  I think at this point,

18   ask anyone else who is on the line if they wish to

19   speak, and if not, we'll conclude the hearing.

20                     JUDGE GERARD:  Okay.  So with that,

21   if there are people who would like to speak, if you

22   have the -- the program up, go ahead and raise your

23   hand just so we can control the flow.  If you don't

24   have that functionality, go ahead and just speak up,

25   and we'll -- we'll take you in order.
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 1       Is anybody else present who has not spoken that

 2   would like to add to the -- the public comment

 3   portion of this adjudication?

 4       Chair Drew, I'm not seeing anybody.  How long

 5   would you like to wait before you adjourn?

 6                     CHAIR DREW:  I think we have heard

 7   all the testimony that we're going to hear tonight,

 8   so I think it's time to adjourn.

 9       Thank you very much for all your participation.

10   This meeting's adjourned.

11                            (Meeting adjourned at

12                             5:13 p.m.)
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 1   STATE OF WASHINGTON )     I, John M.S. Botelho, CCR, RPR,

                         ) ss  a certified court reporter

 2   County of Pierce    )     in the State of Washington, do

                               hereby certify:

 3

 4

          That the foregoing HEARING TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENTS

 5   DURING ADJUDICATIVE PROCEEDINGS of the Washington State

     Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was conducted

 6   remotely in my presence and adjourned on October 3, 2024,

     and thereafter was transcribed under my direction; that the

 7   transcript is a full, true and complete transcript of the

     said hearing, transcribed to the best of my ability;

 8

          That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or counsel

 9   of any party to this matter or relative or employee of any

     such attorney or counsel and that I am not financially

10   interested in the said matter or the outcome thereof;

11        IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand

     this 17th day of October, 2024.

12

13

14

15

                               _________________________________

16                             /s/John M.S. Botelho, CCR, RPR

                               Certified Court Reporter No. 2976

17                             (Certification expires 5/26/2025.)
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		182						LN		7		22		false		          22      which consider state or local governmental or				false

		183						LN		7		23		false		          23      community interests affected by the project.				false

		184						LN		7		24		false		          24          So we're asking the public to comment, if they're				false

		185						LN		7		25		false		          25      commenting on this adjudicative proceeding, to keep				false

		186						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		187						LN		8		1		false		           1      their comments limited to that topic.  Okay?				false

		188						LN		8		2		false		           2                        DAVID ROBERT:  Okay.				false

		189						LN		8		3		false		           3                        JUDGE GERARD:  Very good.				false

		190						LN		8		4		false		           4                        DAVID ROBERT:  Yeah, I'm -- I'm				false

		191						LN		8		5		false		           5      Dave Robert, one of the brothers who own the ranch				false

		192						LN		8		6		false		           6      where the site will be put at.				false

		193						LN		8		7		false		           7          One of the things I wanted to say was the site, I				false

		194						LN		8		8		false		           8      think, is an excellent situation because we're 40				false

		195						LN		8		9		false		           9      miles west of the Tri-Cities and 12 miles north of				false

		196						LN		8		10		false		          10      Sunnyside.  The land that will be under the solar,				false

		197						LN		8		11		false		          11      some -- just about 700 acres is irrigated, but we				false

		198						LN		8		12		false		          12      have a declining well, so the water in some sense is				false

		199						LN		8		13		false		          13      really not considered prime farmland anymore, and the				false

		200						LN		8		14		false		          14      rest of the land that's going to be on is pretty much				false

		201						LN		8		15		false		          15      sagebrush and CRP land.				false

		202						LN		8		16		false		          16          So I just think it's just one of the best				false

		203						LN		8		17		false		          17      locations we could have for solar.  It's very				false

		204						LN		8		18		false		          18      isolated.  We're surrounded with no -- you know, no				false

		205						LN		8		19		false		          19      people able to even look in, 'cause we got the				false

		206						LN		8		20		false		          20      Rattlesnake Ridge on one side, the Hanford				false

		207						LN		8		21		false		          21      reservation on the other, and another small ridge.				false

		208						LN		8		22		false		          22      And just to the west of us, we have a few neighbors.				false

		209						LN		8		23		false		          23      So I'm just suggesting that this would be a great				false

		210						LN		8		24		false		          24      site, and it'd be -- it'd be a win-win for everybody.				false

		211						LN		8		25		false		          25      Thank you very much.				false

		212						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		213						LN		9		1		false		           1                        JUDGE GERARD:  Thank you,				false

		214						LN		9		2		false		           2      Mr. Robert.				false

		215						LN		9		3		false		           3          With that, we'll go ahead and move on to the next				false

		216						LN		9		4		false		           4      speaker who has signed up, and that would be Randy				false

		217						LN		9		5		false		           5      Robert.				false

		218						LN		9		6		false		           6          Randy Robert, are you present?				false

		219						LN		9		7		false		           7                        RANDY ROBERT:  I am.				false

		220						LN		9		8		false		           8                        JUDGE GERARD:  Very good.				false

		221						LN		9		9		false		           9          And if you'd like to make a comment, please go				false

		222						LN		9		10		false		          10      ahead and begin.				false

		223						LN		9		11		false		          11                        RANDY ROBERT:  Yes.  Kind of the				false

		224						LN		9		12		false		          12      same way my brother was saying, the Wautoma Solar				false

		225						LN		9		13		false		          13      energy project is a very good option for renewable				false

		226						LN		9		14		false		          14      energy.  The location is very remote but has easy				false

		227						LN		9		15		false		          15      access to a BPA substation.  The land that would be				false

		228						LN		9		16		false		          16      under solar panels is not prime farmland, along with				false

		229						LN		9		17		false		          17      the water table dropping in the aquifer makes for				false

		230						LN		9		18		false		          18      farming very challenging.				false

		231						LN		9		19		false		          19          This project would save water and help replenish				false

		232						LN		9		20		false		          20      the aquifer.  The Robert Ranch would still raise				false

		233						LN		9		21		false		          21      cattle and farm in the future.  So, to me, this is a				false

		234						LN		9		22		false		          22      ideal spot, and -- and it would be good for our				false

		235						LN		9		23		false		          23      family going into the future.  Thank you.				false

		236						LN		9		24		false		          24                        JUDGE GERARD:  Thank you, sir.				false

		237						LN		9		25		false		          25          All right.  Moving on the next -- to the next				false

		238						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		239						LN		10		1		false		           1      participant:  Allison Keeler.  There is a note that				false

		240						LN		10		2		false		           2      you may not be present, but if you are, go ahead and				false

		241						LN		10		3		false		           3      speak up, please.				false

		242						LN		10		4		false		           4          All right.  We'll come back to -- to Ms. Keeler				false

		243						LN		10		5		false		           5      at the end to see if she did join at that point.  So				false

		244						LN		10		6		false		           6      let's move along to the next speaker.				false

		245						LN		10		7		false		           7          Michael Robert, are you present, sir?				false

		246						LN		10		8		false		           8                        MICHAEL ROBERT:  I am.  This is --				false

		247						LN		10		9		false		           9                        JUDGE GERARD:  (Speaking				false

		248						LN		10		10		false		          10      simultaneously.)				false

		249						LN		10		11		false		          11                        MICHAEL ROBERT:  -- Michael Robert,				false

		250						LN		10		12		false		          12      also one of the Robert brothers.  And I also want to				false

		251						LN		10		13		false		          13      comment that the -- the location for this solar panel				false

		252						LN		10		14		false		          14      project is -- is at -- is very, very isolated.				false

		253						LN		10		15		false		          15      There -- it's -- as indicated, it's at closest 12 to				false

		254						LN		10		16		false		          16      15 miles from any population area, and it is in a				false

		255						LN		10		17		false		          17      valley where -- where basically it is, you know, not				false

		256						LN		10		18		false		          18      easily seen.				false

		257						LN		10		19		false		          19          There's two major highways that kind of go --				false

		258						LN		10		20		false		          20      that kind of go by the ranch and where the solar				false

		259						LN		10		21		false		          21      project is, but you would only see the -- see the				false

		260						LN		10		22		false		          22      project for about three miles on Highway 341, and you				false

		261						LN		10		23		false		          23      would only see it for about one mile on Highway 24.				false

		262						LN		10		24		false		          24      So it's a very -- it's a very good location for --				false

		263						LN		10		25		false		          25      for a solar panel project and at least from the				false

		264						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		265						LN		11		1		false		           1      public viewpoint.				false

		266						LN		11		2		false		           2          And also to reiterate, the well has dropped				false

		267						LN		11		3		false		           3      several hundred feet 'cause of the aquifer being				false

		268						LN		11		4		false		           4      depleted.  And if -- without being able to irrigate				false

		269						LN		11		5		false		           5      this land, the land really is very marginal, you				false

		270						LN		11		6		false		           6      know, wheat country.  The history of the ranch				false

		271						LN		11		7		false		           7      started as a sheep ranch, which didn't -- and then				false

		272						LN		11		8		false		           8      eventually a well was drilled to do farming.  But				false

		273						LN		11		9		false		           9      with the well dropping, it is not -- not feasible to				false

		274						LN		11		10		false		          10      be farming in the way we used to do our farming.				false

		275						LN		11		11		false		          11      Thank you.				false

		276						LN		11		12		false		          12                        JUDGE GERARD:  Thank you, sir.				false

		277						LN		11		13		false		          13          Let's move on, then, next, to the next				false

		278						LN		11		14		false		          14      participant.				false

		279						LN		11		15		false		          15          Mary Larsen, are you present?				false

		280						LN		11		16		false		          16          Mary Larsen, if you're present, would you go				false

		281						LN		11		17		false		          17      ahead and turn yourself off "mute" and speak up.  If				false

		282						LN		11		18		false		          18      not, we'll go ahead and come back to you at the end.				false

		283						LN		11		19		false		          19          All right.  It doesn't appear so at this point,				false

		284						LN		11		20		false		          20      so we'll go ahead and move on to the next speaker.				false

		285						LN		11		21		false		          21      Excuse me.				false

		286						LN		11		22		false		          22          Celene Robert, are you present?  Celene Robert,				false

		287						LN		11		23		false		          23      if you're present, go ahead and turn yourself off				false

		288						LN		11		24		false		          24      "mute," and speak up, please.				false

		289						LN		11		25		false		          25          Okay.  We'll go ahead and just for the sake of				false

		290						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		291						LN		12		1		false		           1      time, we'll move on to the last signed-up				false

		292						LN		12		2		false		           2      participant, and we'll circle back to the other ones.				false

		293						LN		12		3		false		           3          Robin Robert, are you present, sir?				false

		294						LN		12		4		false		           4                        ROBIN ROBERT:  Yes, I am.				false

		295						LN		12		5		false		           5                        JUDGE GERARD:  (Speaking				false

		296						LN		12		6		false		           6      simultaneously.)				false

		297						LN		12		7		false		           7                        ROBIN ROBERT:  I'm one of the other				false

		298						LN		12		8		false		           8      brothers.  Hi.  I think my brothers pretty -- pretty				false

		299						LN		12		9		false		           9      much covered it all.				false

		300						LN		12		10		false		          10          I'm 71 years old, and -- and it'd be nice if the				false

		301						LN		12		11		false		          11      solar went in.  We'd have steady income for the next				false

		302						LN		12		12		false		          12      25 years.  And they pretty much covered the whole				false

		303						LN		12		13		false		          13      thing about the water situation and the isolation of				false

		304						LN		12		14		false		          14      our ranch compared to other towns.				false

		305						LN		12		15		false		          15          That's pretty much it.  Thank you.				false

		306						LN		12		16		false		          16                        JUDGE GERARD:  Thank you, sir.				false

		307						LN		12		17		false		          17          All right.  So let's go ahead and circle back to				false

		308						LN		12		18		false		          18      the three other names I called earlier.  Then we can				false

		309						LN		12		19		false		          19      see if there's any other ones that have signed up				false

		310						LN		12		20		false		          20      that were not on the list I was provided.				false

		311						LN		12		21		false		          21          Allison Keeler, have you managed to join us?				false

		312						LN		12		22		false		          22                        MR. SHARP:  Judge Gerard and				false

		313						LN		12		23		false		          23      Kathleen Drew, this is Dave Sharp.				false

		314						LN		12		24		false		          24                        JUDGE GERARD:  Yes, sir.				false

		315						LN		12		25		false		          25                        MR. SHARP:  I'm not sure if she can				false

		316						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		317						LN		13		1		false		           1      hear me, but, Kathleen Drew, when people are dialing				false

		318						LN		13		2		false		           2      in, you normally give instructions on how to mute and				false

		319						LN		13		3		false		           3      unmute themselves.  I'm wondering if perhaps the				false

		320						LN		13		4		false		           4      people are dialing in and can't get unmuted.				false

		321						LN		13		5		false		           5                        CHAIR DREW:  Ms. Grantham, do you				false

		322						LN		13		6		false		           6      see anyone who is trying to unmute?				false

		323						LN		13		7		false		           7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  I do not see any				false

		324						LN		13		8		false		           8      phone calls who have called in, but in case anybody				false

		325						LN		13		9		false		           9      has joined through their Teams app maybe on their				false

		326						LN		13		10		false		          10      phone and is struggling to unmute, I can instruct you				false

		327						LN		13		11		false		          11      that you can attempt to use star 6 or pound 6.				false

		328						LN		13		12		false		          12          Though I have been checking the participants for				false

		329						LN		13		13		false		          13      whenever ALJ Gerard is calling the names, and I do				false

		330						LN		13		14		false		          14      not see the names that he is calling at the moment.				false

		331						LN		13		15		false		          15                        JUDGE GERARD:  Yeah.				false

		332						LN		13		16		false		          16                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		333						LN		13		17		false		          17                        JUDGE GERARD:  I was -- I was				false

		334						LN		13		18		false		          18      actually checking that as well, and I don't see these				false

		335						LN		13		19		false		          19      participants, but I was hoping or I was concerned				false

		336						LN		13		20		false		          20      that they maybe called in under someone else's name,				false

		337						LN		13		21		false		          21      but it doesn't appear that's the case.				false

		338						LN		13		22		false		          22          Thank you, Mr. Sharp, for that.				false

		339						LN		13		23		false		          23          So let's go ahead and call the next name or the				false

		340						LN		13		24		false		          24      party.  Mary Larsen, have you joined?				false

		341						LN		13		25		false		          25          Again, it doesn't appear so.				false

		342						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		343						LN		14		1		false		           1          Let's move on to the final one.  Celene Robert,				false

		344						LN		14		2		false		           2      are you on any of the calls, and if so, go ahead and				false

		345						LN		14		3		false		           3      turn yourself off "mute," and go ahead and make your				false

		346						LN		14		4		false		           4      comments.				false

		347						LN		14		5		false		           5          Okay.  Ms. Grantham, do we have any other				false

		348						LN		14		6		false		           6      participants that are not on the list that you had				false

		349						LN		14		7		false		           7      provided to me?				false

		350						LN		14		8		false		           8                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Not that I am aware				false

		351						LN		14		9		false		           9      of.  I have been checking the EFSEC in-boxes that				false

		352						LN		14		10		false		          10      people have been e-mailing into to sign up, and we				false

		353						LN		14		11		false		          11      haven't received any new ones as of yet.				false

		354						LN		14		12		false		          12                        JUDGE GERARD:  Okay.  So during				false

		355						LN		14		13		false		          13      this interim period, I'm going to pass the reins back				false

		356						LN		14		14		false		          14      to Chair Drew, and she will inform us all how -- how				false

		357						LN		14		15		false		          15      we'd like to proceed going forward now that all the				false

		358						LN		14		16		false		          16      speakers who are present have spoken.				false

		359						LN		14		17		false		          17                        CHAIR DREW:  I think at this point,				false

		360						LN		14		18		false		          18      ask anyone else who is on the line if they wish to				false

		361						LN		14		19		false		          19      speak, and if not, we'll conclude the hearing.				false

		362						LN		14		20		false		          20                        JUDGE GERARD:  Okay.  So with that,				false

		363						LN		14		21		false		          21      if there are people who would like to speak, if you				false

		364						LN		14		22		false		          22      have the -- the program up, go ahead and raise your				false

		365						LN		14		23		false		          23      hand just so we can control the flow.  If you don't				false

		366						LN		14		24		false		          24      have that functionality, go ahead and just speak up,				false

		367						LN		14		25		false		          25      and we'll -- we'll take you in order.				false
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		369						LN		15		1		false		           1          Is anybody else present who has not spoken that				false

		370						LN		15		2		false		           2      would like to add to the -- the public comment				false

		371						LN		15		3		false		           3      portion of this adjudication?				false

		372						LN		15		4		false		           4          Chair Drew, I'm not seeing anybody.  How long				false

		373						LN		15		5		false		           5      would you like to wait before you adjourn?				false

		374						LN		15		6		false		           6                        CHAIR DREW:  I think we have heard				false

		375						LN		15		7		false		           7      all the testimony that we're going to hear tonight,				false

		376						LN		15		8		false		           8      so I think it's time to adjourn.				false

		377						LN		15		9		false		           9          Thank you very much for all your participation.				false
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           2      (All parties appearing remotely.)



           3           Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council Members:



           4                        Kathleen Drew, Chair



           5                        Elizabeth Osborne

                                    Department of Commerce

           6

                                    Eli Levitt

           7                        Department of Ecology



           8                        Mike Livingston

                                    Department of Fish and Wildlife

           9

                                    Lenny Young

          10                        Department of Natural Resources



          11                        Stacey Brewster

                                    Utilities & Transportation Commission

          12



          13           Local Government and Optional State Agencies:



          14               Wautoma Solar:



          15                    Dave Sharp, Benton County



          16

                       Administrative Law Judge:

          17

                                    Dan Gerard

          18



          19           Council Staff:



          20               Adrienne Barker        Lance Caputo



          21               Alex Shiley            Andrea Grantham
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           6    Opening comments by Judge Gerard                    6



           7    Public comments                                     6



           8    Adjournment                                        15
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          11
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          13
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          16



          17



          18



          19
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          21



          22



          23
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           1                        BE IT REMEMBERED that on Thursday,



           2      October 3, 2024, at 5:00 p.m. Pacific time, before



           3      the Washington Energy Facility Site Evaluation



           4      Council; Kathleen Drew, Chair; and Dan Gerard,



           5      Administrative Law Judge, the following proceedings



           6      were had, via videoconference, to wit:



           7



           8                          <<<<<< >>>>>>



           9



          10                        CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Good evening,



          11      everyone.  This is Kathleen Drew, chair of the Energy



          12      Facility Site Evaluation Council, calling this



          13      meeting to order.



          14          This meeting is -- first of all, this meeting is



          15      for the Wautoma Solar energy project.  This is a



          16      public hearing on the adjudicative hearing for this



          17      project.  The purpose of this adjudicative proceeding



          18      is to determine if the Council should recommend to



          19      the governor preemption of the local jurisdiction's



          20      land-use provisions, and if so, what conditions



          21      should be included in the draft site certification



          22      agreement which considers state or local governmental



          23      or community interests affected by the project.  For



          24      those of you who are offering comments, I ask that



          25      you stay within that topic.
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           1          To begin, Ms. Grantham, will you call the roll.



           2                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair



           3      Drew.



           4          The Department of Commerce.



           5                        MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne,



           6      present.



           7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of



           8      Ecology.



           9                        MR. LEVITT:  Eli Levitt, present.



          10                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish



          11      and Wildlife.



          12                        MR. LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston,



          13      present.



          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of



          15      Natural Resources.



          16                        MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young, present.



          17                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities and



          18      Transportation Commission.



          19                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster,



          20      present.



          21                        MS. GRANTHAM:  For local government



          22      and optional state agencies:  For Benton County, do



          23      we have Dave Sharp?



          24                        MR. SHARP:  Dave Sharp, present.



          25                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And Washington State
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           1      Department of Transportation, Paul Gonseth.



           2          Moving on.  Administrative law judge:  Dan



           3      Gerard.



           4                        JUDGE GERARD:  Present.



           5                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And do we have



           6      anyone present for the counsel for the environment?



           7          Chair, there is a quorum.



           8                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



           9          At this point, I'll turn it over to Judge Gerard.



          10                        JUDGE GERARD:  Good evening,



          11      everyone.  And thank you for your attendance tonight.



          12      As Chair Drew had stated just a moment ago, the



          13      topics are limited to what she articulated just a



          14      moment ago.



          15          I would ask that everyone do speak loudly and



          16      clearly.  We are recording these proceedings.  And we



          17      have asked that everyone limit their comments to



          18      three minutes.



          19          So without further ado, if we are ready, I'll go



          20      ahead and call the first participant.



          21          David Robert, are you present?



          22                        DAVID ROBERT:  Yes, I am.



          23                        JUDGE GERARD:  All right.  If you'd



          24      like to make a comment, sir, please go ahead and



          25      begin.
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           1                        DAVID ROBERT:  Could you just tell



           2      the -- the -- what we're supposed to comment?  I



           3      missed that real quick.  I'm sorry.



           4                        JUDGE GERARD:  Sure.  Chair Drew --



           5                        DAVID ROBERT:  Limit it to --



           6                        JUDGE GERARD:  I'll let her -- if



           7      you don't mind, Chair Drew, would you repeat just



           8      the -- the scope of the -- the proceedings --



           9                        DAVID ROBERT:  Yes.



          10                        JUDGE GERARD:  -- just so all the



          11      rest of everyone else is aware?  If not, I can



          12      certainly take it up and -- and repeat it.



          13                        CHAIR DREW:  I have it.  It's right



          14      here in front of me.



          15          So this is the public hearing on the adjudicative



          16      hearing, and the Council has limited the adjudicative



          17      proceeding to the subject of land use and whether or



          18      not the Council should recommend to the governor



          19      preemption of the local jurisdiction's land-use



          20      provision, and if so, what conditions should be



          21      included in the draft site certification agreement,



          22      which consider state or local governmental or



          23      community interests affected by the project.



          24          So we're asking the public to comment, if they're



          25      commenting on this adjudicative proceeding, to keep
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           1      their comments limited to that topic.  Okay?



           2                        DAVID ROBERT:  Okay.



           3                        JUDGE GERARD:  Very good.



           4                        DAVID ROBERT:  Yeah, I'm -- I'm



           5      Dave Robert, one of the brothers who own the ranch



           6      where the site will be put at.



           7          One of the things I wanted to say was the site, I



           8      think, is an excellent situation because we're 40



           9      miles west of the Tri-Cities and 12 miles north of



          10      Sunnyside.  The land that will be under the solar,



          11      some -- just about 700 acres is irrigated, but we



          12      have a declining well, so the water in some sense is



          13      really not considered prime farmland anymore, and the



          14      rest of the land that's going to be on is pretty much



          15      sagebrush and CRP land.



          16          So I just think it's just one of the best



          17      locations we could have for solar.  It's very



          18      isolated.  We're surrounded with no -- you know, no



          19      people able to even look in, 'cause we got the



          20      Rattlesnake Ridge on one side, the Hanford



          21      reservation on the other, and another small ridge.



          22      And just to the west of us, we have a few neighbors.



          23      So I'm just suggesting that this would be a great



          24      site, and it'd be -- it'd be a win-win for everybody.



          25      Thank you very much.
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           1                        JUDGE GERARD:  Thank you,



           2      Mr. Robert.



           3          With that, we'll go ahead and move on to the next



           4      speaker who has signed up, and that would be Randy



           5      Robert.



           6          Randy Robert, are you present?



           7                        RANDY ROBERT:  I am.



           8                        JUDGE GERARD:  Very good.



           9          And if you'd like to make a comment, please go



          10      ahead and begin.



          11                        RANDY ROBERT:  Yes.  Kind of the



          12      same way my brother was saying, the Wautoma Solar



          13      energy project is a very good option for renewable



          14      energy.  The location is very remote but has easy



          15      access to a BPA substation.  The land that would be



          16      under solar panels is not prime farmland, along with



          17      the water table dropping in the aquifer makes for



          18      farming very challenging.



          19          This project would save water and help replenish



          20      the aquifer.  The Robert Ranch would still raise



          21      cattle and farm in the future.  So, to me, this is a



          22      ideal spot, and -- and it would be good for our



          23      family going into the future.  Thank you.



          24                        JUDGE GERARD:  Thank you, sir.



          25          All right.  Moving on the next -- to the next
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           1      participant:  Allison Keeler.  There is a note that



           2      you may not be present, but if you are, go ahead and



           3      speak up, please.



           4          All right.  We'll come back to -- to Ms. Keeler



           5      at the end to see if she did join at that point.  So



           6      let's move along to the next speaker.



           7          Michael Robert, are you present, sir?



           8                        MICHAEL ROBERT:  I am.  This is --



           9                        JUDGE GERARD:  (Speaking



          10      simultaneously.)



          11                        MICHAEL ROBERT:  -- Michael Robert,



          12      also one of the Robert brothers.  And I also want to



          13      comment that the -- the location for this solar panel



          14      project is -- is at -- is very, very isolated.



          15      There -- it's -- as indicated, it's at closest 12 to



          16      15 miles from any population area, and it is in a



          17      valley where -- where basically it is, you know, not



          18      easily seen.



          19          There's two major highways that kind of go --



          20      that kind of go by the ranch and where the solar



          21      project is, but you would only see the -- see the



          22      project for about three miles on Highway 341, and you



          23      would only see it for about one mile on Highway 24.



          24      So it's a very -- it's a very good location for --



          25      for a solar panel project and at least from the
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           1      public viewpoint.



           2          And also to reiterate, the well has dropped



           3      several hundred feet 'cause of the aquifer being



           4      depleted.  And if -- without being able to irrigate



           5      this land, the land really is very marginal, you



           6      know, wheat country.  The history of the ranch



           7      started as a sheep ranch, which didn't -- and then



           8      eventually a well was drilled to do farming.  But



           9      with the well dropping, it is not -- not feasible to



          10      be farming in the way we used to do our farming.



          11      Thank you.



          12                        JUDGE GERARD:  Thank you, sir.



          13          Let's move on, then, next, to the next



          14      participant.



          15          Mary Larsen, are you present?



          16          Mary Larsen, if you're present, would you go



          17      ahead and turn yourself off "mute" and speak up.  If



          18      not, we'll go ahead and come back to you at the end.



          19          All right.  It doesn't appear so at this point,



          20      so we'll go ahead and move on to the next speaker.



          21      Excuse me.



          22          Celene Robert, are you present?  Celene Robert,



          23      if you're present, go ahead and turn yourself off



          24      "mute," and speak up, please.



          25          Okay.  We'll go ahead and just for the sake of
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           1      time, we'll move on to the last signed-up



           2      participant, and we'll circle back to the other ones.



           3          Robin Robert, are you present, sir?



           4                        ROBIN ROBERT:  Yes, I am.



           5                        JUDGE GERARD:  (Speaking



           6      simultaneously.)



           7                        ROBIN ROBERT:  I'm one of the other



           8      brothers.  Hi.  I think my brothers pretty -- pretty



           9      much covered it all.



          10          I'm 71 years old, and -- and it'd be nice if the



          11      solar went in.  We'd have steady income for the next



          12      25 years.  And they pretty much covered the whole



          13      thing about the water situation and the isolation of



          14      our ranch compared to other towns.



          15          That's pretty much it.  Thank you.



          16                        JUDGE GERARD:  Thank you, sir.



          17          All right.  So let's go ahead and circle back to



          18      the three other names I called earlier.  Then we can



          19      see if there's any other ones that have signed up



          20      that were not on the list I was provided.



          21          Allison Keeler, have you managed to join us?



          22                        MR. SHARP:  Judge Gerard and



          23      Kathleen Drew, this is Dave Sharp.



          24                        JUDGE GERARD:  Yes, sir.



          25                        MR. SHARP:  I'm not sure if she can
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           1      hear me, but, Kathleen Drew, when people are dialing



           2      in, you normally give instructions on how to mute and



           3      unmute themselves.  I'm wondering if perhaps the



           4      people are dialing in and can't get unmuted.



           5                        CHAIR DREW:  Ms. Grantham, do you



           6      see anyone who is trying to unmute?



           7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  I do not see any



           8      phone calls who have called in, but in case anybody



           9      has joined through their Teams app maybe on their



          10      phone and is struggling to unmute, I can instruct you



          11      that you can attempt to use star 6 or pound 6.



          12          Though I have been checking the participants for



          13      whenever ALJ Gerard is calling the names, and I do



          14      not see the names that he is calling at the moment.



          15                        JUDGE GERARD:  Yeah.



          16                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          17                        JUDGE GERARD:  I was -- I was



          18      actually checking that as well, and I don't see these



          19      participants, but I was hoping or I was concerned



          20      that they maybe called in under someone else's name,



          21      but it doesn't appear that's the case.



          22          Thank you, Mr. Sharp, for that.



          23          So let's go ahead and call the next name or the



          24      party.  Mary Larsen, have you joined?



          25          Again, it doesn't appear so.
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           1          Let's move on to the final one.  Celene Robert,



           2      are you on any of the calls, and if so, go ahead and



           3      turn yourself off "mute," and go ahead and make your



           4      comments.



           5          Okay.  Ms. Grantham, do we have any other



           6      participants that are not on the list that you had



           7      provided to me?



           8                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Not that I am aware



           9      of.  I have been checking the EFSEC in-boxes that



          10      people have been e-mailing into to sign up, and we



          11      haven't received any new ones as of yet.



          12                        JUDGE GERARD:  Okay.  So during



          13      this interim period, I'm going to pass the reins back



          14      to Chair Drew, and she will inform us all how -- how



          15      we'd like to proceed going forward now that all the



          16      speakers who are present have spoken.



          17                        CHAIR DREW:  I think at this point,



          18      ask anyone else who is on the line if they wish to



          19      speak, and if not, we'll conclude the hearing.



          20                        JUDGE GERARD:  Okay.  So with that,



          21      if there are people who would like to speak, if you



          22      have the -- the program up, go ahead and raise your



          23      hand just so we can control the flow.  If you don't



          24      have that functionality, go ahead and just speak up,



          25      and we'll -- we'll take you in order.
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           1          Is anybody else present who has not spoken that



           2      would like to add to the -- the public comment



           3      portion of this adjudication?



           4          Chair Drew, I'm not seeing anybody.  How long



           5      would you like to wait before you adjourn?



           6                        CHAIR DREW:  I think we have heard



           7      all the testimony that we're going to hear tonight,



           8      so I think it's time to adjourn.



           9          Thank you very much for all your participation.



          10      This meeting's adjourned.



          11                               (Meeting adjourned at



          12                                5:13 p.m.)
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